

Constitution

And

By-Laws

COSMOPOLITAN GOLF CLUB



Los Angeles, California

Revised, Adopted August 2004

Amended, Approved May 2003

Amended, Approved April 2001

Amended, Approved August 1987

Amended, Approved December 1972

Revised, Adopted January 23, 1963

Incorporated October 31, 1944

Organized September 30, 1944

OFFICERS

President.....	Harry Bellard
First Vice-President.....	Melvin Gilliard
Second Vice-President.....	Bruce Rhodes
Tournament Chair	
Third Vice-President.....	Donald Cronkite
Handicap Chair	
Treasurer.....	Kenneth Glaspie
Financial Secretary	Albert Mayfield
Recording Secretary	William Driver
Corresponding Secretary	Carol Bailey
Board Secretary	Harvey Bailey
Membership Chair	Billy Barnes
Parliamentarian	Bobby Smith
Sergeant-At-Arms	Sanco Grant
Board Member	Sam Frazier
Board Member	Andrew Greene
Board Member	Leo Hill Sr.
Board Member	John Rollins

12/2009

CLUB PRESIDENTS

HENRY LEWIS	1944
IVAN J. JOHNSON III	1945
JESS HUTTEN	1946
LEE MARSHALL	1947-48
EMORY CAIN	1949
DON WALKER	1950-52
J. CULLEN FENTRESS	1953-55
ALONZO B. PEMBERTON	1956-57
LAMAR P. TOLAND	1958
EARL REASON	1959-61
OLLIE N. ARMSTRONG	1962-63
FRANK D. ADAMS, SR.	1964-65
MARK LEWIS SR.	1966-67
ALTON DUHON	1968
LARRY RACHAL	1969
KERMIT BURNS	1970-71
GARNER GRAYSON, JR.	1972
JOSEPH GARDNER	1973-76
FRANK D. ADAMS, SR.	1977-78
JOSEPH GARDNER	1979-80
MORRIS GILES	1981
JAMES PERRY	1982-84
DOCK MATTHEWS	1985-86
ERNEST KNIGHT	1987
DOCK MATTHEWS	1988-89
ALBERT MAYFIELD	1990-91
BOBBY SMITH	1992-93
JOSEPH GARDNER	1994-96
CHARLES KIRKSEY	1997-98
HARRY BELLARD	1999-

TABLE OF CONTENTS

OFFICERS	1
CLUB PRESIDENTS	2
ARTICLE I	4
ARTICLE II	4
Purpose	
ARTICLE III	5
Organization	
ARTICLE IV	5
Dues and Membership	
CLASSES OF MEMBERSHIP	6
Active Membership	6
Honorary Membership	6
Junior Membership	7
Membership Verification	7
Associate Member	7
ARTICLE V	8
Obligations and Discipline	
ARTICLE VI	8
Officers	
Administration	8
DUTIES OF OFFICERS	9
President Duties	9
Chairman of the Board of Directors	9
1st Vice President	9
2nd Vice President	10
3rd Vice President	10
Club Secretary	10
Board Secretary	10
Correspondence Secretary	10
Financial Secretary	10
Treasurer	11
Parliamentarian	11
Sergeant-At-Arms	11
ARTICLE VII	12
Standing Committees	
ARTICLE VIII	13
Meetings	
ARTICLE IX	15
Amendments	
ARTICLE X	15
Auxiliary	
ARTICLE XI	15
ARTICLE XII	15
NOTES	17
Standards of Conduct	18

ARTICLE I

THE NAME OF THIS ORGANIZATION SHALL BE THE COSMOPOLITAN GOLF CLUB AND SHALL BE INCORPORATED AS A NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

ARTICLE II

Purpose

SECTION 1. The purpose of the club shall be to promote and conserve the best interests and true spirit of the game of golf, as embodied in its ancient and honorable traditions.

SECTION 2. To maintain fair and proper methods of handicapping between the members of the club in their intra-club events and to determine and regulate such handicaps within this club for registration of same with any bona fide body, or organization, or association with which the club may be identified or affiliated from time to time.

SECTION 3. To conduct tournaments and/or other sporting or social events for the benefit or enjoyment of the members, their families and their guests, as may be determined from time to time.

SECTION 4. To do any and all other things, in manner or form, as may be best carried out, further, or advance any of the special or particular purposes herein, as may be determined upon by vote of the members, or actions of their properly constituted offices.

ARTICLE III

Organization

The corporation shall be wholly non-profit organization, and no part or portion of the net or other income of the organization shall inure to the benefit of any member or individual.

ARTICLE IV

Dues and Membership

SECTION 1a. The annual dues of each member shall be such an amount as may be fixed and determined upon vote of the Board of Directors at their first meeting following the annual election of officers, and such dues when fixed and determined upon shall be payable no later than February 28th of same year for which the dues have been fixed.

SECTION 1b. The newly elected Board of Directors shall meet within three weeks following the election of officers for the purpose of fixing dues.

SECTION 2. Any member delinquent in dues as March 1st shall no longer be considered a member of the Cosmopolitan Golf Club, and will not be entitled to the benefits of the club, nor entitled to participate in any events sponsored by the club or any association with which this club is affiliated.

Any member so dropped may be reinstated with the status of a new member, only upon payment of full annual dues for the current year, plus joining fee.

SECTION 3. Any amateur golfer of good moral character shall be eligible for membership. applications for membership shall be submitted on forms provided by this organization accompanied by a deposit of the amount of the current dues for the year, plus joining fee. Each application must be first referred to the membership Committee for investigation and recommendation, after which the applicant may be recommended for membership if such report is favorable. any applicant whose application is then rejected may not apply for membership in the club within three (3) years. The recommendation for or against each applicant must represent the majority vote of the committee present and voting.

The sponsor of the rejected application may request and receive an audience with membership on behalf of the rejected applicant.

An applicant for membership must be present at a regular meeting to be voted on by the membership, unless such presence is waived by the Board of Directors for extenuating circumstances.

CLASSES OF MEMBERSHIP

ACTIVE MEMBERS

SECTION 4a. Active members are members who shall be subject to the payment of dues fixed as per the provisions of Section 1 of the ARTICLE, and shall be entitled to vote at all regular and annual meetings of the club, upon all matters coming before the organization for consideration, and shall be entitled to full participation in all of the activities and privilege of the club and of the membership thereof generally.

Active members may not hold elective office in the club and also hold an elected position in another member club in the Western States Golf Association (WSGA). (*Approved 2001*)

SECTION 4b. Any Active member who is called to the military service shall be exempt from all assessments and dues, and shall be carried as an Active Member, with full privilege, during his tour of duty. Such member's fees shall begin on the 1st day of January following separation from the military service.

SECTION 4c. Any Active Member who becomes physically incapacitated due to illness or accidental injury may be carried as an Active Member with full privileges during the period of incapacitation, upon the member reporting his incapacitation to the Board of Directors who will investigate his condition and determine his membership status as revealed through their investigation.

HONORARY MEMBERS

SECTION 5a. Honorary Membership in the club may be conferred upon such persons as may be determined upon either the election of the majority of the Board of Directors or the club in any regular or special meeting assembled, in recognition of any contribution made or service rendered in the interest of the club, or to the game of golf generally, or to the maintenance or advancement of any special or particular purposes of this organization as may be determined upon the vote to the members or action of their properly constituted officers.

SECTION 5b. Honorary Members may be seated at any regular special or annual meeting of the club, but may not enter into any club business discussion or have any voting privileges. Honorary Members may participate in the annual banquet as guests. They may participate in golfing events sponsored by this club, but

Honorary Members shall not be eligible to receive awards that are intended for Active Members of this club or members of the association with which this club is associated.

SECTION 5c. Recommendations for Honorary Members shall be submitted to the Chairman of the Board of Directors in writing. Action of the Board of Directors shall be submitted to the membership for final approval.

JUNIOR MEMBERS

SECTION 6a. Junior Members shall be persons under the age of eighteen (18) years, who shall be individually sponsored by Active Members of the club in good standing, and who shall be elected to such Junior Membership by vote of the membership of club in regular meeting assembled. Junior Members shall have no voting privileges except the privilege of playing or participating in club events or tournaments, and participation in the social features and events provided.

SECTION 6b. junior Members shall be assessed no membership dues or joining fees. association fees and other fees, as approved by the club after recommendation by the Board of Directors, shall be assumed by the club.

MEMBERSHIP VERIFICATION

SECTION 7a. Each member, upon payment or annual dues, shall be issued a membership card certifying such membership in the club for the current year. Such cards shall issued by the Financial Secretary of the club and shall clearly indicate the date upon which such paid up dues expire and shall bear the signature of the Club's President and Financial Secretary.

SECTION 7b. Junior Members shall be issued a membership card, upon verification of continuing membership, by the Board of Directors.

ASSOCIATE MEMBER

SECTION 8. An Associate Member is an active member of the Cosmopolitan Golf Club who is also an active member of another WSGA member club. An Associate member shall be subject to payment of dues fixed as per the provisions of Section 1 of this article and shall be entitled to vote at all regular, special and annual meetings coming before the organization for consideration, and shall be entitled to full participation in all of the activities and privileges of the membership therefore except holding elective offices of the club and be a member of the Board of Directors of the club. (*Approved 1987*).

ARTICLE V
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCIPLINE

SECTION 1. The acceptance of membership in this club shall bind each member to abide by all rules and regulations in its Constitution and By-Laws and to accept and abide by all rules and regulations made or action taken by the club or its Board of Directors pursuant thereto.

SECTION 2. Actions unbecoming a member of the club or reflecting discredit thereon, or upon the membership thereof, or tending to bring the club, or its membership into discredit or disrepute, or refusing, or neglecting a strict and honorable compliance with the Thackeray rules and regulations of the club, or its properly constituted officers made in the discharge of their proper duties, shall render any member liable to suspension or expulsion.

SECTION 3. The office of any Board of Directors members shall be declared vacant if said member is absent from two consecutive board meetings without the expressed permission of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall fill the vacancy from the general membership by majority vote of the board.

ARTICLE VI
OFFICERS

SECTION 1. The officers of this club shall be President, Vice President, Second Vice President, who shall be Tournament Chairman; Third Vice President, who shall be Handicap Chairman; Secretary, Financial Secretary, Treasurer, Parliamentarian, Sergeant-at-Arms and Membership Chairman elected as hereinafter provided, each of whom shall serve without compensation until their successor in office is installed. Officers of the club shall be elected to serve for a period of two years. (*Approved 2003, amended 2010*).

SECTION 2. The presently elected and constituted officers shall be automatically, by adoption of these proposed Constitution and By-Laws, be and constitute the officers of the club, and the Board of Directors for the remainder of the rent year, subject to the provision and/or limitations herein contained.

ADMINISTRATION

SECTION 1. The government and management of the affairs of the club shall be vested in a Board of Directors which shall be composed of all elected officers and four members-at-large, elected as thereafter provided.

SECTION 2. The four Directors-at-large shall elected from the body to serve 1,2,3 and 4 years. thereafter as each term expires the succeeding Director-at-large shall be elected for a period of four years.

SECTION 3. The Board of Directors shall meet once in each month prior to the date of the regular meeting of the club. A quorum at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be eight (8) members.

SECTION 4. If, during the year, a vacancy or vacancies shall occur for any reason among the elected officers of the club, the Board of Directors shall, at their next meeting after that at which notice of such vacancy or vacancies has been given them, elect by ballots from the membership in the club, and officer or officers to fill such vacancies for the balance of the year. Such elected officers shall take office immediately after election.

SECTION 5. Gratuities in the form of green fees may be allocated to Secretarial Officers who do not share budgetary allowance of other elected officers. Fees are not transferable and may not exceed five in any year. They must alternate so that no more two occur in any tournament. The annual is not included (*Approved 1973*).

DUTIES OF OFFICERS

PRESIDENT DUTIES

SECTION 1. It shall be the duty of the President to preside at all meetings of the club and to see that all the by-laws and rules and regulations as may be adopted from time to time are properly enforced, to supervise generally all affairs of the club and to make reports to the club on all matters, and things coming before the Board of Directors and otherwise, in connection with his/her office, at each regular meeting of the club and at the annual meeting to make a report of the activities and general business and affairs of the club during the year. He/she shall appoint all Standing Committees, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, and shall be ex-officio member of the same with power to change, appoint or amend such appointments from time to time, as in his/her judgment shall be indicated for the best interests of the club.

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 2. The Chairman of the Board shall be elected by the Board of Directors at the first meeting after the election of officers.

1ST VICE PRESIDENT

SECTION 3. The 1st Vice President shall preside at all meeting thereof in the absence of the President to act, perform all duties of the President. He/she shall act as business manager, coordinate and expedite administrative activities of the Club and the Women's Auxiliary. (*Amendment approved 1973*)

2ND VICE PRESIDENT

SECTION 4. The 2nd Vice President shall be Tournament Chairman of the club. It shall be his/her duty to arrange, schedule and conduct all intra-club or other golf competitions. In the absence or inability of the President or 1st Vice President to act, he/she shall perform all the duties of the respective offices.

3RD VICE PRESIDENT

SECTION 5. The 3rd Vice President of the Club shall be Handicap Chairman of the club. It shall be his/her duty to maintain a properly authorized system of handicaps for the membership. He/she shall prepare, maintain and keep the club's membership Master Handicap Roster in accordance with any and all associations with which the club is affiliated. In the absence of the President, 1st and 2nd Vice Presidents, or their inability to act, he/she shall perform all the duties of the respective offices.

CLUB SECRETARY

SECTION 6. The club Secretary shall keep a record of the proceedings of the regular meetings of the club in a book kept for that purpose. He/she shall be required to make reports from time to time to the properly constituted bodies who may be entitled to receive same.

BOARD SECRETARY

SECTION 7. The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall keep a record of the proceedings of the regular Board of Directors meetings in a book kept for that purpose. He/she shall be required to make reports of the proceedings of the Board of Directors from time to time to the properly constituted bodies who may be entitled to receive same.

CORRESPONDENCE SECRETARY

SECTION 8. The Correspondence Secretary shall conduct the correspondence of the club and notify all committees of the appointment. He/she shall send all notices required and attend to such other business as may properly belong to the duties of his/her office. He/she shall keep an inventory of all properties and their location.

FINANCIAL SECRETARY

SECTION 9. The Financial Secretary shall collect the funds of the club, issue duplicate receipts for same, and he/she shall bank any and all such monies within five (5) days, in the name of the club at the authorized bank facilities. He/she shall issue a duplicate deposit receipt for all deposits to the Club Treasurer not later than the next meeting following such deposit.

TREASURER

SECTION 10a. The Treasurer shall keep an itemized account of all financial transactions for the club and render report of receipt and disbursement from time to time and/or when requested by the Board of Directors. He/she shall perform such other duties as may properly belong to this office or as he/she may be directed by order of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 10b. The Treasurer is authorized to sign withdrawal forms for monies of the club along with the President. In the event the President of the Treasurer is unable to act, the 1st President is authorized to sign in his/her place.

PARLIAMENTARIAN

SECTION 11. The Parliamentarian shall interpret the Constitution and Robert Rules of Order whenever the need arises at meetings of the Board of Directors or Club to insure orderly procedure of such meetings and shall be furnished a copy of the Robert Rules of Order by the Club.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS

SECTION 12. The Sergeant-at-arms shall maintain order and inspire discipline at all meetings. He/she shall introduce a., visitors to the meetings of the club and Board of Directors. He/she is authorized to eject any unruly member from the meetings as directed by the chair.

MEMBERSHIP CHAIR

SECTION 13. The Membership Chairman shall establish a membership committee, to build and promote the membership of the club among desirable persons eligible for such membership therein. The Membership Chairman shall introduce and submit the application of prospective members to the membership at a regular meeting, keep a roster of all names submitted and issue Bag Tags, and copies of Cosmopolitan Golf Club Constitution and By-Laws to those members. (*Added 3/2010*)

ARTICLE VII

STANDING COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. The following standing committees shall be appointed by the President following the biannual meeting and election of officers subject to the approval of the Board of Directors.

(a) Budget and Finance - shall make and submit an annual budget based upon all proposed expenditures of all committees and officers authorized to make expenditures in conjunction with the President.

(b) Auditing - The President shall secure an annual audit of the financial records of the club. Such audit report shall be furnished to the membership with a complete financial statement within thirty (30) days after receipt of the audit .(*Revised 2004*)

(c) Ways and Means - The President shall appoint a Ways and Means Committees to establish, promote, to aid in providing ways and means for the accomplishment of any of the purposes of the club, or any of the work of the standing or special committees, and to cooperate, aid and assist the Board of Directors in the matter of the ways and means toward the accomplishment of any of the purposes of the club. The Ways and Means Committee may also function as a Nominating Committee for the purpose of nominating and submitting to the membership at large the names of candidates for election to the Board of Directors of the club at the regular annual election thereof.

(d) Publicity and Public Relations - The President shall appoint a Publicity and Public relations Committee which perform the duties of enhancing the better qualities of the club in the eyesight of the public. The work shall be done through newspapers, the monthly Newsletter, as published by the club, and other medium approved and available to the club.

(e) Entertainment - The Entertainment Committee's duties shall be to encourage and arrange, manage and conduct, social and entertainment features and events both for the regular meetings of the club and for special occasions from time to time as may be determined.

(f). The regular delegate to WSGA shall be the president and/or any alternate as approved by the Board of Directors. (*Revised 2010*)

ARTICLE VIII

MEETINGS

SECTION 1. Regular meetings of the club will be held on the fourth Wednesday of each month at 7:00 p.m., at a place designated by the Board of Directors through the Monthly Newsletter or other written notification.

SECTION 2. Regular meetings of the Board of Director shall be held on the third Wednesday of each month at 7:00 p.m., or at such other time or times as shall be fixed by majority vote of the Board of Directors in meeting assembled.

SECTION 3. Special meeting of the club shall be called at any time by the Secretary on the order of the President or eight (8) members of the Board of Directors. The Correspondence Secretary shall send each member notice of the time and place of such meeting by mail.

SECTION 4. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the President and must be called upon written request of eight (8) members of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 5. At each regular meeting of the club, the President shall render a report of the Board of Directors for the preceding month covering matters and things coming before said board together with action taken thereon, or action proposed to be taken thereon, and the club shall vote its approval or disapproval thereof.

In the event that the action of the board in any given instance is disapproved by a majority of the membership present at the regular meeting at which the report of such action is rendered, the matter in question shall be considered disapproved and will not be submitted again for board consideration within sixty (60) days.

SECTION 6. Officers shall be elected bi-annually and installed during the month of December. At the annual meeting, the President, for himself and for the Board of Directors, the Treasurer, the Financial Secretary, the Tournament Chairman and all Standing and Special Committees as designated by the President shall make an annual report. The Treasurer's report shall be in duplicate in enough copies for submission to each member.

SECTION 7. Notice of time and place of the annual meeting shall be sent to each member and such meeting shall take place at a regular club meeting for that month.

At all elections of officers and upon all matters coming before the club calling for a vote of the members, each active member in good standing shall be entitled to one (1) vote as determined by the Board of Directors from time to time. (*Amended 2010*)

SECTION 8. The Following shall be the order of business at all regular and special meetings of the Board of Directors:

1. Meeting called to order by Board Chairman or other proper officer.
2. Roll call of members of the board.
3. Read minutes of last regular Club meeting.
4. Read minutes of last Board meeting.
5. Committee reports.
6. Unfinished business.
7. New business.

8. Adjournment.

SECTION 9. The following shall be the order of business at all regular and special meetings of the club:

1. Meeting called to order by Board Chairman or other proper officer.
2. Introduction of invited guests, dignitaries and prospective applicants.
3. Minutes of last regular Club meeting.
4. Minutes of last Board meeting.
5. President's report of proceedings of last meeting of associations with which the club is affiliated.
6. Committee reports.
7. Unfinished business.
8. New business.
9. Entertainment
10. Adjournment.

SECTION 10. The following shall be the order of business of the annual meeting of the club:

1. Meeting called to order by Board Chairman or other proper officer.
2. Introduction of invited guests, dignitaries and prospective applicants.
3. Minutes of last regular Club meeting.
4. Minutes of last Board meeting.
5. Committee reports.
6. The Financial Secretary's report.
7. The Treasurer's report.
8. President's report from the Board of Directors.
9. The President's report.
10. President declares all offices vacant, appoint selection chairman, Nominating Committee report.
11. Campaign speeches of all candidates.
12. Election of officers for the ensuing year.

ARTICLE IX
AMENDMENTS

SECTION 1. These Articles may be repealed or the Constitution amended by two-thirds majority vote of the members of the club present at any annual or regular meeting called for that purpose provided that any proposed amendment or addition shall be first submitted to the club in writing at a regular meeting at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of any meeting at which such amendments or revision is to be submitted to vote.

SECTION 2. Upon all question of construction or interpretation of the Constitution or By-Laws of the club the decision of the Board of Directors shall be final.

ARTICLE X
AUXILIARY

The purpose of the Auxiliary shall be to promote and sustain the interests of the spouses and friends of the Cosmopolitan Golf Club in the fine traditions and customs of golfers in Southern California.

Any spouse, or friend designated by an unmarried member, may become a member of the Auxiliary of the Cosmopolitan Golf Club. The unmarried member must withdraw their authorization in writing before he/she designates another friend, but no member of the auxiliary may be dropped without a majority vote of the members of the Auxiliary present at a meeting properly called for that purpose.

All proposed Auxiliary activities must be coordinated with the Board of Directors, through the Auxiliary Coordinator.

ARTICLE XI

Roberts Rules of Order shall govern procedure at all meetings excepting as is otherwise herein provided.

ARTICLE XII

All powers not specifically delegated in this Constitution shall be vested in the governing body of this organization.

NOTES

COSMOPOLITAN GOLF CLUB

Standards of Conduct

Introduction

In a complex urban society it is essential that each member of the Cosmopolitan Golf Club conduct themselves appropriately at all times to avoid mortification to themselves, their fellow club members and the Club. The Cosmopolitan Golf Club has a long history of positive community service and support as well as an impeccable name in the Southern California golfing community. The listed articles are not all inclusive but serve as a policy guideline of acceptable conduct and expectations for all members of the Cosmopolitan Golf Club.

ITEM I

Membership Support: Members of the Cosmopolitan Golf Club are expected to support and whenever practical participate in all the Club's fundraising activities. This is imperative in order to have a self sustaining organization, and also in keeping with Club motto "going places".

ITEM II

Tournaments: In order to administer a successful golf tournament, it is necessary for all members to their part in supporting the Club Tournament Director or the designee. Commitments to participate in Cosmopolitan Golf Club tournaments shall be made in timely manner as well as timely notifications when a member is unable to participate in a tournament that he or she has previously committed to play. However, should a financial obligation be placed on the Club and the Club is unable to defer the cost of the member's commitment, the member will be responsible for any financial obligation imposed on the Club. Members playing in a Club sponsored tournament are expected to arrive at least one hour prior to their scheduled tee-time or as directed by the Tournament Director or his/her designee.

ITEM III

Uniforms: Members of the Cosmopolitan Golf Club should wear their Club uniform at all Cosmo tournaments and events as directed by the President or the Tournament Director.

ITEM IV

Courtesy: Cosmopolitan Golf Club Members are expected to maintain a courteous attitude and demeanor toward fellow Cosmo members, guests, golf course staffs, and any others when participating in Cosmopolitan Golf Club events.

ITEM V

Non-members: Golfers that are not members of the Cosmopolitan Golf Club but who desire to play with the Cosmos may do so at the discretion of the Tournament Director. However, non-members are limited to participate in Cosmopolitan Golf Club monthly tournaments (sweeps) no more than three times a year.

ITEM VI

Cellular Telephones: During meetings and in the field of play, members should avoid unnecessary disruptions by adjusting their cellular telephones to eliminate any disturbance to others.

ITEM VII

Returned Checks: The Cosmopolitan Golf Club accepts personal checks from its members to pay for Club events. As such, the Club assumes checks presented to a bank will be honored. Should two personal checks not be honored by a member's bank, the club will no longer accept personal checks from that member. In addition, the Club will impose a \$10.00 charge (fee) plus any bank charges for a returned check.

ITEM VIII

Obligations and Discipline: The Cosmopolitan Golf Club article V sections 1 & 2 addresses these subjects.

Section 1: Specifies that, "The acceptance of membership in this Club shall bind each member to abide by all rules and regulations of its Constitution and By-Laws, and to accept and abide by all rules and regulations made or taken by the Club or its Board of Directors pursuant thereto".

Section 2: Specifies that, "Actions unbecoming a member of the Club or reflecting discredit thereon, or upon the membership thereof, or tending to bring the Club, or its membership into discredit or disrepute, or refusing, or neglecting a strict and honorable compliance with the Thackeray rules and regulations of the Club, or its properly constituted officers made in the discharge of their proper duties of their respective or collective officer, shall render any member liable to suspension or expulsion".